
United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

STXTR COMMITTEE
32nd meeting

held on
Tuesday, 4 November 1986

MMTY-FIRST SEWION

Oj&iol Records*

at 10.30 a.m.
New York

~. _ .- --.-- .-__- - - -- - - - ------1__-_-- - - .

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 32nd MEETTNG

Chairman% C r . VOICU  (Romania)

CONTFNTS

AGFNl'A  JTF.M 130% RFPORT  OF THF INTERNATIONAL I,AW  COMMTSSTON  ON THF WORK  OF ITS
THIRTY-FTGATH SFSSTON  (continued)

ACFNDA  TTFM 175s DRAFT C'ODF  OF OFFFNCES FGATNST THF FTACE AND SECURITY OF
MANKTND% REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENFRAL  (continued)



A/C.6/41/SR.32
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.45 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM 1301 REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL LAW CXmMISSION  ON THE WORK OF ITS
THIRTY-EIGHTH SESSION (continued) (A/41/10, A/41/406, A/41/498)

AGENDA ITFM 125: DRAFT CODE OF OFFENCES AGAINST THE PEACE AND SSCURITY OF
MANKINDt REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A/41/537 and Add.1 and 2)

1. Mr. HAYES (Ireland) said that one of the reasons for the success of the work
of the International Law Commission was the exchanges of views between the
Commission and Governments, which ensured that research and creative thinking were
combined with a recognition of political realities. His delegation intended to
therefore respond to the Commission’s reauest anh transmit its observations to that
body. His delegation also welcomed the fact that the reduction in the length of
the Commission’s session, although it had prevented even greater progress, had been
offset by a more effective organisation of work and a more efficient use of time.

2. The adoption on first reading of the draft articles on jurisdictional
immunities of States and their property and on the status of the diplanatic courier
and the diplomatic bag not accompanied by diplomatic courier marked  the end of an
important stage and provided a coherent basis on which the newly-elected members of
the Commission could continue their work.

3. On the subject of jurisdictional immunities of States and their property, his
delegation continued to believe that the concept of absolute immunity had little
relevance when State activities increasingly exceeded the conventional scope of
Government functions. Thus the distinction between acta jure .imperii  and acta jure
gestionia  should be retained, although the formulation of the provisions should, if
necessary, be somewhat flexible.

4. In draft article 6,  the words “and the relevant rules of general international
law”, in brackets, should be deleted. The draft articles on jurisdictional
immunities of States represented a laudable effort to codify the law in a
particularly sensitive and uncertain area. The retention of that phrase would
constitute an abandonment of that objective and would cast doubt on the uoefulnese
of adopting a set of draft articles with such a reduced scope. If  the inclusion of
the phrase should be necessary to ensure the adoption of the articles, it would
mean that the subject was not yet amenable to codification. It was therefore to he
hoped that future work on the draft would proceed to a successful conclusion, which
would include the deletion of the bracketed phrase from article 6.

5. With regard to draft articles 21 and 22, his delegation believed that a
State’s immunity extended to the legal interests it might have in property which
wa5 neither in its possession nor under its control , and that the draft articles In
aueetion must cover that situation, without, however, extending the immunity to
persons or hoflies not entitled to them. Clearly, it would not be easy to find a
‘vording  that was both explicit and cotarminous with the objective. It could be
argued that the term “its property”, in the third l ine of the draft article,  was
broad enough to cover the point) however, greater certainty and clarity were called
for . The bracketed phrase might be replaced with wording alonq the lines of “or
affecting a legally protected interest it has in property”.

/‘...



A/c.6/41/SR.  32
English
Paqc  3

(MC. Hayes, Ireland)

6. With regard to the etatua of the diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag not
accompanied by diplomatic courier, he noted that, for small  countriee  l ike Ireland,
the unaccompanied diplomatic bag wae an important mode of confidential
communication. Thus, there was no doubt that the diplomatic bag was inviolable and
could not be opened or examined by any means. Any modification of that principle
would undermine the confidentiality which was the bag’s raison d’&tre. Hi8
delegation therefore favoured the retentlon of all the bracketed words in
paragraph 1 of draft article 28. It was aware of abuses of the diplomatic bag and
their implications, and thus would not be unwilling  to consider reasonable mea6ure6
to prevent euch abuses,  provided that the basic principle of the inviolability of
the bag was respected.

7. Draft article 33, which permitted States, by mean8  of a declaration to refrain
from applying the articles to specified categories of diplomatic couriers or bags,
would lead to an undesirable plurality of rdgimes and would detract from the effort
to harmonlze the law in that area. Wowever, it seemed  that several States had
serious reeervationa regarding the uniform rCgime set out in the draft articles.
Under the circumstances, his delegation had reluctantly concluded that article 33
should be retained, although it hoped that, with time, a uniform r&ime  with no
exceptions could be established.

8. Part three of the draft article6  on State responsibility,  which concerned the
implementation of international responsibility and the settlement of disputes,
dealt with a topic that woe at the centre of international law ae well as
especially complex and controversial. -ever, it seemed  to be accepted that the
provisions relating to the settlement of dieputes  and the implementation of State
responeibillty  should be an integral part of the draft, a view with which hi8
delegation concurred. That general acceptance had been predicated on a recognition
of the inherent paradox in the topic, which in fact tended to legitimate  actions
that would normally be regarded as breaches of international legal obligations, and
of the need to control that adisruptivew  element. Yet controversy  continued to
surround  the nature of the procedures for the settlement of disputes. Provisions
regarding the settlement of disputes reouired that States parties should  first seek
a settlement through the means specified in Article 33 of the Charter, unless  they
were bound to make uee of other procedures. If the e’earch  for a eolution under
Article 33 of the Charter wan unauccemsful, compulsory third-party procedures might
be invoked. Such provisions (draft article 4 and the annex) were based on
~~OV~E~CXWI  of the 1969 Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties and the 1982 United
Nations Cont:tntion  on the Lsw of the Sea. Such procedc es were applicable only in
a very limited number of casemm, i .e.  ouestione  of jut3 cogene or international
cr lmes. The compulsory jurisdiction of the International Court of Justice and the
prohibition in draft article 5 of any reservation thereon was the focus of the
controverey. Those ouestions  were related to difficult and controversial area8 of
international law. His delegation believed It was essential ,  for at leant  two
r eason8, that disputes of that type should be settled at the higheat  poeeible
jud ic ia l  l eve l : in the first place, referring the dispute to the Court guaranteed
that cases would be examined and adjudicated by an authoritative body ana with the
necessary visibi l ity!  furthermore, the questions at iseue  were of vital  interest,
not only to the parties, but to the international community a8 a whole.

/ . . .



A/C.6/41/SR.  32
English
Page 4

(Wr. Hayes, Ireland)

9. His delegation wae in favour of a system for the settlement of disputes
comparable to the one proposed in the draft articles. State responsibility  was a
field more likely than moat to give rise to conflict6 , and one in which small
States were at a disadvantage and must have recourse  to third-party settlement
procedures. Such procedures were residual, and the parties thue had ample
opportunity to settle a dispute in the manner they preferred. Third-party
settlement procedures were also graded, and were binding only in special limited
cases. Fina l ly , the standing of the International Court of Justice in the
international community had greatly improved in the past 20 years and should
continue to do so.

10. The commentary to article 2, paragraph 3, drew an unsatisfactory parallel with
article 65, paragraph 5, of the 1969 Vienna Convention, since the latter provided
for a single notification while the current draft articles provided for two
notif ications. Article 2, paragraph 3, might seem to dispense altogether with the
notification under article 1 and the stage which that notification introduced.
Such a so1uti.x)  did not seem justifiable, and the paragraph needed to be
c l a r i f i e d . Article 4 (c) should exclude article 12 (b), which was already covered
in article 4 (a) . He had some doubts, moreover, about paragraph 9 of the annex,
since small countr its, which most needed third-party procedures might not avail
themselves of them because of their prohibitive cost.

11. Unfortunately, the Commission had been unable to start the second reading of
part one of the draft articles. His delegation hoped that the Commission would do
S O at its thirty-ninth session.

12. With regard to the draft Code of Offpnces against the Peace and Security of
Mankind, his delegation wished to see a situation in which both States and
individuals could be held criminally responsible for offences against the peace and
security of mankind, and in which an international court would be given criminal
jurisdiction. Regrettably, current circumstances did not permit that, and the
Commission should therefore concentrate on the criminal responsibility of
individuals in their capacity of government agents , and should explore the
possibil it ies of a universal  jurisdiction as an alternative to international
jurisdiction. The options selected should be without prejudice to later
consideration of other options, and the progress achieved might facilitate a review
of at least one of them. His delegation would a) so like to include the use of
nuclear weapons in the list of offences against the peace and security of mankind,
but doubted that such a proposal would command sufficient support.

13. The topic entitled “International l iabil ity for injurious conseauences  arising
out of acts not prohibited by international law” was certain to become increasingly
important in the immediate future. While ite examination by the Commission was
sti l l  in the formative stage, the reports of the ~f$ecial Rapportcur and of the
Commission revealed many interesting aspects which called for investigation. His
delegation looked forward to further progress on that topic.

/ . . .



A/C.6/4l/‘SR.  32
English
Page 5

(Mr. Hayes, Ireland)

14. Ireland appreciated the Commiesion’s  determination to keep its programme and
methods of work under review, and hoped that, despite the financial constraints,  it
would be given the resources anJ the necessary time to carr!’  on its work. He
welcomed the efforts to expedite the publication of the Year book  of the
International Law Commission, and endorsed the reoueet  to the Secretariat to ensure
the publication in 1987 of the fourth edition of The Work of the International Law
Commission. He wished, finally, to encourage the Commission to pursue its fruitful
collaboration with regional legal organizationa.

15. Mr. ROSENSTOCK (United States of America) announced his GOvernment’s  intention
to mbmit  in writing its observations on the two sets of draft articles adopted in
first reading at the thirty-eighth session of the Commission.

16. There were clearly two different approaches to the topic of jurisdictional
immunities of States and their property. There was little point in claiming,
however, that one of thorre approac:ies  was favoured by common-law countries and the
other by civil-law countries , or in establishing a dichotomy between developed and
developing countr  ice, or even in stating that the common-law countries or the
advocates of more limited immunity had more precedents on their side. In that
regard, a ouestionnafre seeking information on that subject had been sent to all
States Members of the United Nations in 1979, and the documer cation received in
reply had been submitted to the Commission. That should be enough to cast doubts
on the accusations of partiality made against the Commission. The existence of two
different approaches did not mean that the Commission’s work could not have
successful results or that the scope of such results was bound to be very limited.
The comments made by the representative of Italy on t.hat matter seemed particularly
convincing (A/C.6/41/SR.30). It was not impossible to adopt a neutral position
midway between thoae two approaches. Article 6, as prwiaionrlly adopted at the
1980 session, for example, seemed to meet that reouirement. The version adopted in
firet  reading appeared to have moved away from that middle ground and would leave
it altogether if the phrase between brackets were deleted.

17. From the outset, his delegation had expressed miegivings  as to the need or
even the usefulness of elaborating a set of draft articles on the status of the
diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag not accompanied by diplomatic courier.
title it appreciated the serious work done, for which it wished to thank the
Special Rapporteur, it continued to have doubts as to whether it was appropriate to
attach such priority to that topic.

18. Mr. ARANGIO-RUIZ  (Italy) said it was regrettable that the Commission had been
able to deal only with that portion of the Special Rapporteur’s  seventh report on
the topic of State responsibility (A/CN.4/397  and Add.1)  which concerned pact three
of the draft articles, and that the five articles of part three had not been more
fully discussed  before they had been submitted to the Drafting Committee. Apart
from the time shortage, a more thorough coneiderati \n had been rendered difficult
by the fact that it would have presupposed the atta‘nment  by the commission of a
more advanced stage in the elaboration of part two. The Drafting Committee,
however , had been unable even to reach agreement on article 6 of part two.

/ . . .



A/C.6,‘41/SR.  32
Rngl ieh
Page 6

(Mr .  Arangio-Ruiz,  I ta ly )

19. In addition to article 5 on reservations , part three itself  consisted of two
portions: articles 1 and 2 on implementation , and articles 3 and 4 on the
settlement of displtee (A/41/10, note 71).

20. Articles 1 and 2, which dealt e8sentially with some aspects of the action
which the injured State might take under part two, were in substance - and ahould
become at a later stage also in form - an integral part of the provisions of part
two. The Commission shoulci re-examine  articlea 1 and 2 carefully in order to make
them more consistent with the actual practice of States in the phase following the
finding of a wrongful act. In addition, as they stood,’ they envisaged perhaps an
excess of notifications. In the situation covered by article 1, the injured State,
rather than notifying its intention to invoke article  6 of part two, should demand
whatever it felt entitled to demand  from the alleged wrongdoers cessation of the
allegedly wrongful conduct and restitutio  or any other suitable form of
reparation. The allegedly injured State would naturally mske such motivated
demands on the strength of article 6 of part two, but would not just invoke that
article or notify its intention to do so. The need for a notification would arise
only after the demands of cessation or reparation had met with a fin de non
recevoir on the part of the alleged wrongdoer. At such stage, however, the object
of the notification would not be the intention to invoke article 6, but the
determination of the injured State to avail itself of the possibilitie.s  of reaction
contemplated in articles 8 and 9 cf part two , unless the alleged wrongdoer showed a
better disposition to negotiate or proposed some settlement procedure other than
negotiation. At such a stage, the parties would find themselves already in the
situation envisaged in article 2 of part three rather than in the situation
contemplated in article 1. That article should appear as an additional sentence or
paragraph of article 6 of part two, to provide that the injured State should put
forward its complaints and claims, and its justif ication thereof. The only
notification to be contemplated in part three would be the notification referred to
in article 2.

21. Articles 3 and 4 properly belonged to part three. His delegation was
generally satisfied with the reference (art. 3) to the peaceful settlement
procedures listed in Article 33 of the Charter , and with the relative innovations
represented by the prwisions of paragraphs (a), (b) and (6)  of article 4, which
should all be accepted. It fully agreed, however , WI th the members of the
Commission who had suggested that paragraphs (a) and (b) df article 4, or a
separate paragraph of that article ,  should indicate clearly that a unilateral
application for suamission  of a dispute to the International Court of Juetice would
be subjected to the proviso that the parties had not submitted the diepute to
arb i t ra t ion . It also shared the view that the provisions of part three seemed to
be focused excessively on disputes arising only in the application of the articles
in part two. It should be clear, on the contrary, that the dispute8 envisaged in
articles 3 and 4 might relate to any issue arising in the interpretation or
application of any of the articles in part one or part two, regardless of whether
article 6 of part two had been expressly or implicitly invoked. Subject to those
reservations, his delegation generally agreed with the content of articles 3 and 4
as they stood*  with the exception perhaps of one point in article 4 (b), which as
it stood provided for a judicial settlement in a situation in which the alleged

/ . . .



A/C. 6/4L/SR.  32
Engl ish
Page 7

(Mr .  Arangio-Ruiz,  I ta ly )

wrongdoer had contested a countermeasure as constituting an international crime,
but not in a case where the injured State had claimed that the wrongful act itself
constituted an international crime. His delegation wondered whether the provisions
of paragraph (b) should not be extended to include such a situation.

22. The three sets of “supplementary~ consequence0 of international crime6 as
opposed to international delicts  (A/CN.4/389,  art. 14 and commentary), especially
the “collective right” of al l  injured States (E., para. (3) of the commentary t0
art. 14) and the “rights and obligatioos  as are determined by the applicable rules
accepted by the international community ata a whole” (art. 14, para. l), required
some clarification. Considering that an international crime was defined as a
violation of an obligation that was “essential for the protection of fundamental
interests of the intQrnational  community” (Yearbook of the International Law
Commission 1980, vol. II (Fart Two,), p. 32),  and at the same time the weakness of
community mechanisms that might come int> play, tne protection of those fundamental
interests depended largely on the ntult’ tcity of  the States qualifying as injured
States under article 5 of part two of 4 draft, which should, even if they were
not directly injured, concur in the d..~unciation  of the wrongful act and take
measures to ensure cessation and reparation. The rights and obligations of those
not-directly-injured States remained to be defined with the proper precision. The
fact that that task straddled the borderline between the topic of State
responsibility and the draft Code of Offences against the Peace and Security of
Mankind should not unduly delay its accomplishment, for it was essential for
progress in elaborating parts two and three of the topic of State responsibility
and for progress with the draft Code.

23. The Commission had been wise to take an inductive apprach to the four general
olrestions on which thQ Special Rapporteur  on the topic of the law of the
non-navigational uses of international wcltcrcoursee  had focused the debater
(a )  the Sefinttion  of “international watercourse’#  (b )  the applicabil ity of the
concept of “shared natural resourcesal  (c) the uuestion  whether B draft article
should contain a list of factors determining the rCgime of the watercourse; and
(d) the relationship between the concept of equitable allocation of the uses and
benefiis  of a watercourse and the obligation of each watercourse State to refrain
from causing appreciable harm to other States  using the watercourse. His
delegation was pleased that the Special Rapper teur had chosen to avoid general
definitions of principle, which would enable it, before expressing its preferences
to hear the pint of view of delegations of countries situated on continents where
international watercourses - not to mention “systems* or %asins”  - crossed vast
regions.

24. His delegation adhered to the concept of a “framework agreement” consisting of
rules and principles to bQ applied in the abecncc of agreement and of guidelines
and r ecommenda t ions. Italy believad  that general rules and principles, Qspecially
the principle of equity, could be identified in that area for the purpose of
codification and progressive development  of the law in that area.

/ . . .



AJC.6/41/SR.32
English
Page 8

25 .  Mr. BUBEN  (Byelorusaian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that the modern world
reauired  all Statea strictly to renpect the rules of international law and called
for the aualitative development of international law in the interest of universal
smcur ity. The work of the Commission wan therefore of primary importance.

26. With regard to jurisdictional  immunities  of States and their property, he said
that the logal nature of the immunity of one State from the jurisdiction of the
courts  of another State waa baaed on the generally recoqnized  and lonq-standinq

-pr inc ip le *par in oarem imperium non habet*.I-.-. Any draft-articles on that topic -muat
therefore  be based on the concept of full State immunity not limited or functional
immunity. The International  Law Commiaslon’s  draft, hoGever  tended towards the
concept of limited immunity, which wan contrary to the Charter principles of
vovereign equality of States and non-interference in the internal affairs of StDtQR.

27. In his delegation’s view, the purpose of draft article 3, paragraph 1, nhould
be not to define the term “Stnte” for the purposes of thQ draft, but to give 8
definition of the concept of the State in case of criminal proceedings instituted
in the courta  of other States, in other wordn, a def’nition  of the organs of the
State which represented it in its international relations and which enjoyed
immunity in the exercise of their functions. Immuni.ty  should also extend to the
property necessary for thoae organs to exercise their functions. Paragraph 1 was
klot satisfactory,  especially  subparagraph (b), which referred to npolitical
suh-divisions of the State’ , a formula that was also out of place in draft
acticle 7 ,  paragr@h  3 . Was it justified to resort to new thQOrQtiC81
constructions which complicated the codif  ication of international law? Perhaps it
would be more euitable to remain with the termo used in article 7 of part one of
thQ draft articles on State responsibil ity.

28. In draft article 6, the words “and the relevant rules of general international
law” should be deleted,  for it was not logical to seek reservations to immunity
outside the framework of the draft while the vc!ry  purpose of tho draft was to
Codify thQ norms in force in general intQrnationa1  law. In his view, draft
article 13 had no bar18  in law1 acts or omissions could be attrtbuted to States
only on the basis of international law, and the question then was that of the
international responsihilfty of States, which was not within the jurisdiction of
national courts. No State  could establish in ita national legislation criteria for
attributing an act to another State) nor could a national court set such criteria.

29. His delegation could not accept the text of draft article 15 (b) for although
paragraph (a) arose logically from draft article 14, paragraph (b), which dealt
with the rights of third persons,, was directed againlst  the interests of the
de\veloping  countries and served those of the transnational  corporations.
&PncQrning  actiClQ  18, he said that the provision according to which the State
engaged in commercial service could invoke immunity was not justified. Ships used
by States for public purposes should also enjoy immunity. A ship belonging to a
Government was operated by thQ State for public purpoa~s, and the State shoUld
QnjOy immunity  from forhign jurisdiction. A ship might belong to a State but be
operated by a physic81 person having a legal status different  from that Of the
State; in such a case, any proceeding,  including a proceeding “in rem” would have
to be Instituted against the parson operating the ship. His dQlegation  proposed
that the words “non-governmental” enclosed in sauare brackets in paragraphs 1 and 4

/ . . .



A/C..6/41/SR.32
Sngl ish
Page 9

(Mr .  Eiuben,  Byelorummisn  SSR)

should be retained, so as to take into account the situation of rmrny socialist
countries and developing countries.

30. With regard to draft article 21, his delegation was in favour of maintaining
the word6 “non-governmental” in subparagraph (a), because State property in the
socialist  and the developing countries wan used for public and for economic and
social development purposes. The same warn true for draft article 23, paragraph 1.
His delegation reserved the right to submit oomnents  on all the articles in dua
time. It considered  that the XLC draft articles provided a good baeie  for adopting
a convent ion, especially  since the comments of States would be taken into account
afi the work progressed.

31. The draft art!cles  on the status of the diplunatic  courier and the diplomatic
bag not accornpJnied  by diplomatic courier , adopted by the Cunmismion on firmt
reading at its thirty-eighth re8sion, were also a satisfactory foundation for
future work in that area. The Byelcrussian  SSR had, on three occa8~ona, 8ent
written replies to the Secretariat’s  auestionnaires  on the subject.

32. If the diplomatic courier warn fully to exercise his functions, he must enjoy
complete immunity  from the jurisdiction at the transit State and the receiving
State. Immunity must be accorded to him a8 a civil servant of the mending State
and could be granted to him only by the sending State. That was why his delegatiar
could not accept the position whereby the diplomatic courier would be granted only
functional Immunity 80 an to take the interests  of the receiving and the tranmit
States into account. In any case, the interertr  of those two categories of State8
were duly protected, in particular by draft articles 5 and 7.

33. The topic 0% protection of the diplomatic bag had been discuseed  at length by
the Commission, efqecially with regard to draft article 28. The point of departure
of the text should be the notion that the bag should not be opened or detained and
should  be exempt from examination directly or through electronic or other technical
devices. Otherwise, the principle of inviolabil ity would be inCringed. Doubts
concerning possible abuses of the diplomatic bag , which would be ueed to dimpatch
documents or articles other than those intended exclusively for official une, were
unjustif ied, in view of draCt  article 25, paragraph 2. Legal guarantees against
abuses were also provided for in draft article 5, paragraph 1. DiCfer@nt  views on
those important aueetfons  could be reconciled by deleting draft article 28,
paragraph 2, in view of the optional declaration An draft article  33.

34. As for the topic of State rceponeibility, it was premature to comment on the
seventh report submitted by the Special Rapportcur to the Wiesion at ita
thirty-eighth seeaion, because implementation could not be considered until
part two of the draft on the content, Corms and degrees of international
responsibility  had been drafted. Such wrongful acta as aggression, racial
discrimination, genocide, apartheid, colonialism, the use of mercenaries,
international terrorism and the mflitarizatMn  of outer space must be included
among the international crime8  for which the State was reaponaible. Unfortunately,
the Drafting Wittee  had been unable to conclude its work, even on draft
a r t ic le  6 . At its thirty-ninth session, the Commission must endeavour to work more
expeditiously on that important  topic.

/ . . .



A/C.6/41,‘SR.32
English
Page 10

(Mr. Buben, Dyelorussian  SSR)

35. With regard to international liability for injurious consequences arising out
of acte not prohibited by international law, his delegation did noi: share the
Position taken by the Special Rapporteur that that liability must apply to all
activit ies entail inq risk, since that would be tantamount to making the State
material ly l iable for ali tvpes of activities within its jurisdiction. That
concept did not seem to be consistent with contemporary international law. It
would be helpful to define various 5peciClc acts which might have injurious
consequences and to draft provisions for the prevention of those acts as well as
provisions on other matters relatinq to acts not prohibited by international law.

36. Concerninq the law of the non-naviqational  uses of international watercourses,
any system mcst be based on the aqreement of the system States. Article5 must be
dram up to serve as recommendation5 corresponding to the characteristics of the
watercourses of the system State5 concerned.

37. Reqardinq relation5 between States and international oraanizations,
unfortunately the Commission had been unable, because of insufficient time, to
consider the third report of the Special Rapporteur at its thirty-eighth session.
His delegation had expressed its views  on that subject in the General Assembly at
the Courtieth session and reserved the right to comment on it again at the
appropriate time.

38. Mr. ALTANGERRL (Monqolia)  s a i d  t h a t bis &legation atrached special importance
to the topic entitled “Status of the diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag not
accompanied by diplomatic courier”, which was being considered  by the Commission,
became the diplomatic courier an.l baq were essential for communication between
States and their diplomatic representatives abroad. The maintenance of normal
relations between States and their missions depended on the establishment of a
codified international r&qime for the diplomatic courier and bag as a supplement to
the provisions of existin  conventions on diplomatic and consular relations. Hi8
deleaation was therefore in favour of draftinq  a new international instrument on
that topic and welcomed the Commission’s adoption in first readina at its
thirty-eighth session of the set of article5 thereon, which it deemed satisfactory,
except for draft articles 18 and 20 which still required considerable work.

39. Article lb, paraqraph 1, limited the immunity from criminal jurisdiction
accorded to the diplomatic courier in respect of “acts performed in the exercise of
his functions”, whereas, in his view, the immunity should be unlimited and total,
without any restriction placed on the exercise of official functions. Some
deleaations considered that the provisions of article 18 were a compromise
solution, but the importance of the role played by the diplomatic courier and the
guarantees provided for in draft article 5 cast doubt on the leqal merits of such
restrictions. In practice, moreover, if a diplomatic courier abused the protection
accorded to him by his status, the sending State was under an obliqation  to deprive
him of that protected status.

40. Draft article 28 on the protection of the diplomatic bag had been the topic of
lenqthy discussion at the previous session of the Sixth Committee, and the
Commisa  <VI which had been unable to reach agreement on it at its thirty-eighth

/ . . .



A/C.6/41/SR.  32
English
Page 11

(Mr. Altangerel, Mongolia)-

session had therefore left a number of words in brackets. The diplomatic bag was a
physical expression of the freedom of communication between the sending State and
ita diplomatic missiom abroad and should, as such and according to the bracketed
words in draft article 28, paragraph 1, be *exempt from examination directly or
through electronic or other technical devices”. Because of technical progress, the
use of certain device5 might indeed undermine the principle of inviolability
because the confidential nature of the content of the bag would no lonqler be fully
ensured. Since his delegation considered that the bag should be exempt from all
examination, it was in favour of removing the bracket5 and of retaining the
bracketed words in the text of draft article 28, paragraph 1. It was to be hoped
that a new international instrument based on the tiraft articles would soon govern
that area of international lat.

41. Mr. HILLGERBERG  (Federal Republic of Germany) stressed the great importance of
the work of IIC and the need for its summary record5 to be continued in their
existing, extensive Corm. As every expert in international law knew, much of ILC’s
influence was attributable to those documents.

42. ILC had concentrated on completing its consideration, on first reading, of two
draft articles on the jurisdictlonal  Immunities of State5 and on the status of the
diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag. He noted that the former was rightly
based on the principle of par in parem imperium non habet, but it was uncertain
whether that was a reference to existing customary international law or a
constituent prwisioo. The precise delimitation of State activities enjoying
immunity did not yet seem to be fully determined. Existing customary international
law was increasingly interpreted to mean that acta jure gestionie  were excluded
from immunity, the determining criterion being the nature of the act and not the
motive or purpose of the State activity.

43. The XC’s draft, on the other hand, contained a combination of diverse
cr iter is. The retention of brackete, especially in draft articles 22 and 23,
indicated that the pro[rlems  had not been solvedl which could also be seen from the
cumulative use of the criteria “nature of the contract” and “purpobe  of the
contract”. It could be deduced from article 3, paragraph 2, that the criterion of
“commerc is1 contract” was not suf Clcient  to determine the areas not enjoying
immunity. According to the draft, that criterion should be supplemented by that of
the “purpose of the wntract”. However, every Government activity had a public
purpose and, if that triter cm was to be used, immunity would be very extensive and
State-trading countries would have an advantage over those whose economic
activities were largely privately organized.

44. !lo avoid any misunderstanding, it would be desirable in draft article 11,
paragraph 1, not to retain the formula “is wnsidered  to have consented  to the
exercise of that jurisdiction”, which had been included in addition to the
expression “cannot invoke irmaunity  from jurisdic ion” used elsewhere in the draft
to indicate the limitations on immunity. Immunity in respect of claims concerning
liability deserved further examination. The exclusion of immunity in the event of
personal injuries or damage to property (draft art. 13) was, on the one hand, very

/ . . .



A/C.6’41/SR.32
En91  ish
Page I2

(Mr. tiillgenberg,  Federal Republic
of Germany)

extensive  in that no dtstinction  was m-de between the type of activity
(juee imperii and w geationis)  8 on the other hand, it could be inferred from the
provision that all types of crose-frontier damage were not included and thus
enjoyed immunity. ILC should study the relationship between those two points and
existing customary international law.

45. In evaluating the draft, the practical effects of its provisions on wurt
proceedings must not be neglected . It would be necessary, In particular, to
consider an addendum to draft article 25 to the effect that a default judgment
could be rendered only if “the Court has jurisdiction”.

46. The provisions on measure5 of constraint were welcome in 50 far as the
outdated theory of unlimited immunity had not prevailed. None the less, the
reauirement  of  a “connection with the object of the claim”, specified in
article 21, was strange because a claim was usually not connected with certs in
objects. The difficulty was reduced by the alternative of a connection “with the
agency or instrumentality against which the proceeding was directed” (draft
a r t . 21, para. 21, but it was not eliminated because it was not clearly stated
which connection the agency or instrumentality must have with the holder of the
right. Finally, draft article 23 1 (c) was unacceptable in its present Corm,
ticsuse  it granted the assets of central bank5 immunity without restricting it to
central bank5 purposes.

47. His deleqation  would submit detailed written comments on the topic in due
course.

40. With regard to the status of the diplanatic wurier  and the diplomatic bag not
accompanied by diplomattc c-our ier , his delegation reaffirmed the views it had
expressed at the fortieth session. The Commission, in its work of devising a
uniform rhgime to govern the status of the diplomatic courier and diplomatic mail,
encountered difficulties whenever the new provisions exceeded the limits of
existing rules of the Vienna Conventions. That was particularly true of draft
articles 17, 28 and 33.

49. D&-aft  article 28, paragraph 2 , could be interpreted as permitting the
examination of the contents of diplomatic bags in any instance of suspected abuse.
If the limits of absolute inviolability of the diplomatic bag were to be defined by
a leq.nl provision, such limits should be more clearly described. Public security
and the safety of individuals should be the basic criteria in such exceptional
situations. If there was strong suspicion or evidence that the contents of a
diplomatic bag might endanger security, the receiving or transit State could take
action, by virtue of the right of eelf-defence  or OC t ‘e duty to protect human
life, and the sending State should be kept informed and granted an opportunity
either to dispel the suspicion or agree to any mutually acceptable verification
measure. Any possible amendment of existin?  provisions of the Vienna Conventions
should be given careful consideration.

/ . . .



A/C.6/41/SR.  32
Engl iah
Page 13

(Mr. Hillgenbcrg, Federal Republic
of Germany)

50. Lastly, the possibil ity of optional declaratiocle,  provided ft c In draft
article 33, would certainly introduce Bane flexibility and facilitate the
acceptance of the text by States, but it might hinder the establishment of a
coherent and uniform rbgime.

51. His Government reserved the right to submit detailed comments before the
second reading of the ILC’e draft.

52. Mr. BISWOUNA (Morocco) paid tribute to all the members of 1L.C who, despite the
curtailment of the 1985 session, had msnaged to complete consideration, on first
reading, of the draft articles on the jurisdictional immunities  of States and their
property and on the status of the diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag not
accompanied by diplomatic courier. He was convinced that the viewe to be expreBsed
in the Sixth Committee would facilitate the adoption of new general multilateral
conventions to suppleme,lt  and strengthen the legal structure built by the United
Rations in the ouest for world peace through law.

53. Concerning the jurisdictional immunities of States and their property, he said
that the wealth of domestic jurisprudence and practice of States, in contrast to
the very limited diplomatic and international practice, wae actually one of the
main consttqints  on the codification and progressive development of laws on the
topic. Not only were there manifest divergences between the courts of different
systems, but there was also a great risk of concealing difficulties by making a
general reference to domeetic law and practice. The Commiesion must in fact choose
between draft minimum rules that could be agreed by mutual consent and Berve  as a
common denominator for all State legislation and practice, and draft exhaustive
rules covering every question raised by immunity and its exceptions. In  a  sp i r i t
of realism it had chosen the first option, but as a compromise and in order to take
acwunt of the “grey area. it envisaged providing a bracketed reservation,
referring to “the relevant rules of general international law”, in article 6, which
dealt with the principle of immunity. Paragraph 3 of the commentary on that
prWiSion  clarified the meaning of the phrase and itB aim, which was to prevent the
draft articles from freezing or deterring the future development of the judicial,
executive and legislative practice of States.

54. His delegation doubted whether that aim could be achieved in that way. I n  i t s
viw, underetood  thus the reservation about the “relevant rules of general
international law” might give rise to pointless arguments about the very sourceB of
that law. If it was really a matter of international custom, the authore omitted
to mention, in addition to practice, the second fundamental element of customary
rules, namely “opinio  juris sive necessitatis’  or the recognition of that practice
by the other subjects of International law. That revived the problem of
harmonizing  national legislation and jurisprudence, which the draft sought to avoid.

55. While it did not deny the pressing need for further development of
international law on the subject, his delegation thought it more reasonable to
leave that problem to the means of dispute settlement which the Commission proposed

/ . . .



A/C.L/Il/SR.  32
English
Page 14

(Hr. Rennouna , Morocco)

t0 include in the second reading of the draft. Moreover, draft article 28 left the
door open to reciprocal meaBures  in the event of a restrictive application of the
prwisione  of the articles. hBtly, it must be borne in mind that the reference to
international custom was implicit in any international convention, which obviously
took shape in a pre-existing and dynamic juridical environment that necessarily
conditioned its application and interpretation.

56. The same general remark was valid for draft article 3 on “interpretative
provisions”. Despite its doubted usefulness, that provision, which referred to the
practice of the State claiming immunity in order to judge whether the purpose of
the contract was relevant to determining its noncommercial  character, could give
rise to numerous disputes. It would introduce an element of judgement  external to
the contract, the pursuit of which could moreover prove very risky.

57. Draft article 21, entitled “State immunity from measures of constraint”,
contained the bracketed phrase “or property in which it has a legally ps ltected
interest”. His delegation thought the phrase vorth keeping, provided it was made
clear that it referred only to measures of constraint on property whicil affected
the status of the interest 1 involved.

58. Concerning the status of the diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag not
accompanied by diplomatic tour ier, draft article 28 was a key provision, the
purpose of which was to balance the right to confidentiality of correspondence
addressed to official representatives abroad with the right of the receiving State
to ensure its Security and respect  for its legitimate interests and legislation.
The conditions for that balance of Lnterests were falrly clear: the diplomatic bag
was presumed to carry only official documents and, for that reason, could not be
opened or detained) however, since that presumption was not indisputable, it could
be challenged if the receiving State had serious reasons for thinking that the bag
contained something other than correspondence. The bag could then be detained and
searched in the presence of a representative of the sending State. I f  the  l a t ter
refused to agree to that procedure, the bag would be returned to it.

59. That situation corresponded to existing practice, but the Commission had
introduced a reference to the use of electronic or other technical devices
doubtless in order, to take account of the latest developments in inspection
equipment. That reference had not gained the consensus of members of the
Commission, however, since it remained in sauarc brackete.

60. In his delegation’s view, and in order to respect the balance of interests
that the wording of draft artic1.e 20 sought to embody, recourse  to euch new methods
of examination should also be subject to the prior agreement of the sending State.
There would thue be cane kind of parallelism between forme of examination, which
was all the more neceesary  in view of the existing inwuality  between States with
regard to means of examination, an imbalance which could become  even greater in the
future. It was therefore up to the receiving State to choose the most suitable
method of examination, provided that there was not a succession of Inspections but
rather a choice between the meana available.

/ . . .



A/C.6/4l/SR.  J.?
Engl ish
Page 15

(Mr. Rennouna, Morocco)

61. Lastly, his deltqation  did not consider it justified to accord the same
privileges to the receiving State and thl tranoit State because the interests of
the latter could not be affected in the same way by the contents of the
correspondence or the bag.

62. Draft article 33, entitled “Optional declaration”, was also a fundamental
provision since it concerned the coherence and the very essence of the draft
a r t ic les . Although the commentary explained that the optional declaration was the
implementation of an agreed option and did not constitute a reservation, it seemed
to his delegation that, terminology notwithstanding, the result was similar, since
the aim was to limit the effect of the convention in respect of certain Statee
Parties only. In addition, draft article 33 introduced what amounted to a general
reservation concern11  1 the very aim of the Convention as set forth in itB
ar t ic le  1 , when such a reservation would normally be prohibited under the Vienna
Convention on the Law of Treaties. Although it allowed a State to be bound by only
part of a treaty, that Convention restricted itself to regulating the procedures by
which States gave their consent to be bound by the instrument, something which was
very far from providing an option.

63. As for the mention of article 298 of the United NatiOnB Convention on the Lsw
of the Sea in the Commission’s wmmentary, it must be recognized  that that article
could not serve as an argument by analogy, because it envisaged a right of choice
only between dispute settlems-nt proceduress a right which had been sanctioned by
the treaty practice of recent years. Mar eover , the option offered by article 33
could lead a State to waive the application to itself of customary rules,
something which was also formally ruled out by the Vienna Convention.

64. His delegation emphasised that it had only wished to bring out some of the
complex issues raised by draft article 33, the full implications of which the
Commission should consider in second reading so that it could be brought closer
into line with general international law. To maintain that that was the price to
be paid for a universal convention or, at least, one obtaining the wideat poBsible
participation of States, was a risky and even dangerous bet if it ultimately
weakened or challenged established customary or conventional rules. The work of
codification would then be diverted from its primary aim, which was to consolidate
rather tlran weaken existing customary practices that worked well.

65 .  Mr . DE SARAM (Secretary of the Committee) announced that Chile and France had
become sponsorsof draft resolution A/C.6/41/L.3  on the report of the International
Law Commission.

The meeting rose at 1 p.m.


